ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS' AFFAI RS
March 19, 2013
1:09 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Representative Lora Reinbold

Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er

Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVBERS ABSENT
Representati ve Pete Hi ggins
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE JO NT RESCLUTI ON NO. 11

Commenorating the 30th anniversary of President Ronald Reagan's
address to the nation concerning the Strategic Defense
Initiative, recognizing the strategic inportance of Alaska in
the mssile interceptor defense system and urging the United
States to deploy the nunmber of ground-based interceptors
originally intended at Fort G eely.

- MOVED CSHJR 11(MV) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 164

"An Act authorizing municipalities to exenpt from taxation, by
ordi nance approved by the voters in the municipality, the real
property that is the primary residence of a resident who is at
| east 60 years of age and the wi dow or w dower of a person who
was killed while in the mlitary service of the United States;
and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 164(M.V) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HIR 11

SHORT TI TLE: COMMEM ANNI VERSARY OF REAGAN SDI  SPEECH
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) SADDLER

03/13/13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- March 19, 2013



03/ 13/ 13 (H) MLV
03/ 19/ 13 (H) MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

BILL: HB 164
SHORT TI TLE: PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON'M LI TARY W DON ER)
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT

03/ 13/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 13/ 13 (H) MV, CRA
03/ 19/ 13 (H) MLV AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CHARI SSE M LLETT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the sponsor of HB 164.

MARTY MCGEE, Assessor

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 164, answered
guesti ons.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director

Anmerican G vil Liberties Union of Al aska (ACLU of Al aska)
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 164.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1: 09:13 PM

CO CHAIR GABRI ELLE LEDOUX called the House Special Committee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 1:09 p.m
Representati ves Hughes, Guenberg, Reinbold, Saddler, Foster,

and LeDoux were present at the call to order.

HIR 11- COVWEM ANNI VERSARY OF REAGAN SDI SPEECH

1: 09: 51 PM

CO CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE JO NI RESCLUTION NO 11, Conmmenorating the 30th
anni versary of President Ronald Reagan's address to the nation
concerning the Strategic Defense Initiative, recognizing the
strategic inportance of Alaska in the mnmissile interceptor

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- March 19, 2013



defense system and urging the United States to deploy the
nunber of ground-based interceptors originally intended at Fort
G eely.

1: 10: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER, speaking as the sponsor of HIR 11,
stated the resolution commenorates President Ronald Reagan's
address to the nation on Mirch 23, 1983. Presi dent Reagan
believed the U S. should attain peace through strength, and
called for the developnent of a strategic mssile defense
system The resolution credits President Reagan for his vision
and also honors Al askans who play a role in what is presently
known as the G ound-Based M dcourse Defense System The Al aska
National Guard 49th Battalion mans the system at U S. Arny Base
Fort Geely which has 26 mssiles and silos; however, the
original plans called for 40 mssiles and since 2009, the nation
has been vulnerable to the threats of missile capability from

Iran, China, and North Korea. The resolution calls for the
conplete deploynent of the full build out of mssiles at Fort
G eely. Recently, the incomng Secretary of Defense announced

plans to deploy 14 nore interceptors at Fort Geely and four at
Vandenberg Air Force Base in California. Representative Saddler
restated that HIJR 11 recognizes President Reagan's "star wars
vision," honors his conmtnment to peace defense systens, and
val i dates the decision to conplete the installation of inceptor
m ssiles at Fort G eeley.

1:12: 56 PM
CO CHAI R LEDOUX opened public testinony.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he wuld offer a conceptual
amendnent to nmake a few grammati cal changes to the resolution.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER concurr ed.

1:15:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt Conceptual Amendnent 1.
REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG called attention to page 2, line 13,
and suggested deletion of the word "respectfully.” On page 2,

line 19, he suggested replacing the word "mssile” with the word
"mssiles.” On page 2, lines 26-27, he suggested replacing "a

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- March 19, 2013



North Korean mssile attack™ with "mssile attacks from North
Korea or any other geographically close entities.” On page 2,
line 29, he suggested deleting ", including in Decenber 2012;"
and inserting ", Decenber 2012," follow ng "2006."

1:17: 45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES wi t hdrew her objection. There being no
further objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

CO-CHAIR FOSTER thanked the sponsor for introducing the
resol ution.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked if the resolution was drafted before
or after the announcenent of the deploynent of additional
mssiles at Fort Geely.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER sai d bef ore.

1:19: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER noved to report HIR 11, as anended, out of
committee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHIR 11(MV) was
reported from the House Special Commttee on Mlitary and
Veterans' Affairs

The commttee took an at-ease from1:20 p.m to 1:22 p.m

HB 164- PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON' M LI TARY W DOV ER)

1: 22: 15 PM

CO- CHAI R LEDQUX announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 164, "An Act authorizing nmunicipalities to
exenpt from taxation, by ordinance approved by the voters in the
muni ci pality, the real property that is the primary residence of
a resident who is at |east 60 years of age and the w dow or
wi dower of a person who was killed while in the mlitary service
of the United States; and providing for an effective date."

1:22:28 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CHARISSE M LLETT, Alaska State Legislature
speaking as the sponsor, related that one of her constituents

who | ost her husband in action worked hard to pass an ordi nance
in the Municipality of Anchorage that would allow a property tax

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- March 19, 2013



exenption for the first $150,000 of the assessed value of a
primary residence for a widower) of a person who was killed
while in mlitary service. The ordi nance, known as Proposition

7, passed in 2012, but wll not take effect until the
| egi sl ature anmends AS 29.45.030(e). This bill wll anend the
statute and allow the exenption to take effect. Unfortunately,
the bill as drafted only allows w dows(ers) over the age of 60
to receive the exenption, but the intent was to help younger
famlies also. An anmendnent will be offered to change the age
requi renent so the exenption will apply to any w dower) whose
spouse was killed during mlitary service,. Representative

MIllett advised that about three years after a mlitary spouse
is killed, there is a significant reduction in death benefits
and the mlitary pension is not available until the age of 62.
This bill will encourage mlitary famlies who have invested in
a honme to stay in Al aska.

1:26: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said she is glad for this assistance to
mlitary famlies.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES expressed her appreciation to the sponsor
and said she supported the change in the age requirenent.

CO CHAI R FOSTER stated his support for HB 164, and asked for the
range of inconme that is paid to a survivor after a spouse has
died in mlitary service.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT was unsure. In the aforenmentioned
situation, her constituent received survivor status pay for
three years and is now in retired status and nust carry the
burden of continuing insurance and other benefits. She will not
receive survivor's benefits until the age of 62. Representative
MIllett offered to find out the exact death benefits for
survivors.

CO CHAI R LEDOUX opened the neeting to public testinony.
1:29: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about the bill's fiscal inpact on
Anchor age.

1: 29: 57 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- March 19, 2013



MARTY MCGEE, Assessor, Minicipality of Anchorage, stated that
approximately 250 wi dows(ers) are enrolled in the entire program
and estimated the legislation would add |ess than 10 additiona

people to those eligible to receive benefits.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG asked whet her M. M Gee f ound
subsection (e) confusing.

MR. MCCGEE agreed, although he said he has a working know edge
and under st andi ng of [subsection (e)].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG suggested using the bill to clarify the
secti on.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT opined the abovenentioned amendment wl |
make the section nore clear.

1:32: 37 PM

CO- CHAI R LEDOUX sai d she was unsure whether the anendnent is the
pl ace to do so.

1: 33: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked for clarification on the change in
t he nunber of people who qualified for the exenption.

MR. MCGEE explained that the Minicipality of Anchorage may add
10 nore exenptions to the current nunber as the result of this
| egi sl ati on. This is primarily due to the change in age
determ nation, and that the interpretation of existing law is
that the deceased was a disabled veteran prior to death. House

Bill 164 clarifies that the deceased does not have to be
di sabled prior to death, and that the exenption applies to the
wi dow(er) of those who died in service. M. MGee saw no

problem with the interpretation of HB 164 and supported the
removal of the age requirenent.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked on what the estimte was based.
MR. MCCEE responded the estimate of 10 is based on the nunber of
those who have inquired about the exenption but who were

i neligible due to age.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG called attention to page 2, line 3,
whi ch read:

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- March 19, 2013



a person who was killed while in the mlitary ..

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said "killed" neans death by an
accident, intentional homicide, or in conbat. He asked whet her
the survivor would be excluded from the exenption if a person
sinply died while on active duty.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT said yes. In further response to
Representative G uenberg, she surm sed expanding the exenption
to those who died would include a |arge group of people, and the
intent of the legislation is to assist young famlies during the
beginning of their mlitary service. She said this is a policy
call, but preferred to retain the present |anguage because it
mat ches Anchorage's nuni ci pal policy.

1: 37: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG advised it is inmportant to determ ne
whet her a death is natural, accidental, a suicide, or a homcide
to avoid possible controversy on determ ning whether a w dow(er)
is eligible for the exenption. He pointed out that the survivor
and famly are just as needy regardl ess of how the spouse passed
awnay.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT said her answer is unchanged.

CO- CHAIR LEDOUX wurged the sponsor to consider whether other
service-rel ated deaths could be applicable w thout expanding the
exenption to all deaths.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT offered to clarify the bill by using the
mlitary's definition of "killed while during mlitary service."
This definition will address service-related death benefits -
her understanding is that suicide is not included - and she w |
provide the definition to the next conmttee of referral or at
t he next neeting.

CO CHAI R LEDOQUX suggested the sponsor work on the bill prior to
its hearing at the next commttee of referral.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES agreed that there would be instances in
whi ch a service nmenber may suffer a service-related death

1:41: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said service-connected disabilities
have been greatly expanded to include type 2 diabetes for those

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- March 19, 2013



exposed to Agent Orange. He gave a personal exanple of service-
related disease and death that occurred nany years after
mlitary service. Because this legislation is broadly renedial,
he expressed his hope that the bill would "cast the net broadly"
to prevent litigation on behalf of a w dow(er).

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD agreed to further discussion at the next
commttee of referral, of which she is a nenber.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered to help the sponsor. Al so, he
asked to contact the Minicipality of Anchorage on the
retroactivity authorized in Section 2.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT confirnmed that the nunicipality approved
[retroactivity] in the |egislation.

1:45:52 PM

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director, Anmerican Cvil Liberties
Union of Alaska (ACLU of Al aska), expressed ACLU of Alaska's
support for HB 164, and asked the commttee to address a
possi ble situation wherein a service nenber who is legally
married in another state to a person of the sane sex is killed,
but the widower) is denied the benefit granted by HB 164 under
the ternms of the Alaska State Constitution. He stated that this
is not only norally but Ilegally wong, because the Al aska
Suprene Court has ruled on this issue in Alaska Cvil Liberties
Union v. State of Alaska, Minicipality of Anchorage (AKCLU v.
State). Furthernore, the Alaska Trial Court has decided on the
property tax exenption issue which is currently under appeal to
the state suprene court. Wth mnor anmendnents, the bill can be
brought in Iline wth Alaska constitutional law and avoid
[itigation. He recalled in the 26th A aska State Legislature a
simlar anmendnent was made to Senate Bill 278 thus there is
precedent to recognize current Al aska |aw. The inportant noral
issue is that it is essential for all states to recognize and
honor all service nenbers and veterans, especially those who

give their |ives. M. Mttman urged that anending this
legislation will not be seen as neking a noral judgnment on sane-
sex marriage or honosexuality, but instead that all service

menbers deserve to be honored and their famlies should not be
di scri m nated agai nst.

1: 48: 56 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- March 19, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked how many people in Al aska woul d be
affected by this change. She said she did not want to hinder
the bill's passage.

MR. M TTMAN sai d because of historic and ongoing discrimnation
agai nst Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) famlies
in Alaska, no one has exact nunbers. However, there is no need
to hold the bill because the anmendnents are very sinple. M.
Mttman stressed that the anmendnents are inportant even if only
one famly is affected.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he feels strongly about both this
issue and the bill, and has a deep noral commtnent to this
cause. He said he was prepared to offer an anendnent to address
this issue; however, he said he does not want to jeopardize the
bill and asked for advice from other nenbers of the commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT advised that the case of Schnidt et.al
v. State of Alaska, Minicipality of Anchorage (Schmdt v. State)
is on appeal and no decision has been nmade on the legality of

same-sex nmarriage benefits in the state. She urged the
conmittee to nove the bill as it is and anend at a |later date if
necessary. In further response to Representative G uenberg, she

said the Al aska Suprene Court case in question has been briefed
and offered to provide copies.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he was interested in receiving
copies of the brief. He asked M. Mttman for further coments.

1:52: 28 PM
MR MTTMAN explained there are two related court cases. The

first case, AkCLU v. State was decided by the Alaska Suprene
Court and established that because of the prohibition of sane-

sex marriage in the Alaska State Constitution, it was
unconstitutional to deny sanme-sex couples benefits that the
state provides to opposite-sex couples. On that basis, the

Al aska Trial Court ruled in favor of sanme-sex couples in regard
to the property tax exenption in Schmdt v. State, which was
appeal ed, and is now awaiting a decision. He said, "But wth
respect to whether or not there's an open question of |aw, that
question of |aw has already been decided."”

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG asked for the name and cite of the
first case.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -9- March 19, 2013



MR. M TTMAN responded it was AKCLU v. State, and further details
are provided in the conmmttee packet.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he did not want to slow the bill's
progress but asked for assurance that the issue wll Dbe
addressed if the court decision is nade known.

CO CHAIR LEDOUX preferred further discussion take place in the
next commttee of referral which is the House Community and
Regi onal Affairs Standing Commttee (HCRA

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD said she is confortable noving the bil
as it is and further discussion my be a political naneuver.

1:55:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG stated he would not oppose noving the
bill with the abovenentioned assurance from the sponsor and the
chair of the next commttee of referral.

CO-CHAI R LEDOUX restated her assurance there will be discussion
but there is no assurance that anything w Il change.

REPRESENTATIVE M LLETT said she is also open to further
di scussion, but believes no decision has been nmade on the
constitutionality of the tax exenption. Her intention is to
help w dows(ers) whose spouses volunteered to serve in the
mlitary stay in the state. There was no intention to make a
political statenent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he did not inmpugn anyone's
i ntentions.

The commttee took an at-ease from1:57 p.m to 1:58 p. m
1:58: 40 PM

CO- CHAIR LEDOQUX, after determning no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony.

1:58:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD nmoved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1,
which would elimnate the age requirenent for a wdower).
There being no objection, Conceptual Amendnent 1 was adopt ed.

1: 59: 34 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 10- March 19, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report HB 164, 28-LS0635\A, as
amended, out of commttee with individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB
164(MV) was reported out of the House Special Conmttee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.

2:00: 09 PM
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 2:00 p. m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -11- March 19, 2013



